

Johnson County Central Music Boosters Constitution and By-Laws February 21, 2008

CONSTITUTION

Article I

- Section 1. This organization shall be named the Johnson County Central Music Boosters.
- Section 2. The purpose of this organization is to support the advancement of the instrumental and vocal music programs of the Johnson County Central Schools through moral and financial assistance whenever possible. All monies acquired by this organization shall be used toward this purpose.

Article II

- Section 1. The officers of this organization shall consist of President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer, all of which constitute the Executive Board.
- Section 2. The officers shall perform the duties regularly assigned each respective office.

BY-LAWS

Article I

Section 1. Members of the Johnson County Central Music Boosters shall be the parents or legal guardians of the students in the schools Fifth through Twelfth Grade music programs and any interested persons desiring to participate in the functions of the organization. A copy of the constitution and by-laws will be available upon request or posted on the school website.

Article II

- Section 1. The organization year shall be from June 1 to the following June 1.
- Section 2. Regular meetings shall be held throughout the school year. The Executive Committee has the authority to schedule or reschedule the meeting dates. Special meetings may also be called by the President.
- Section 3. Officers shall be elected on a rotating basis at an April meeting, taking office on June 1. A President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer shall be elected for two-year terms (with the Vice President moving up to the President position their second year).
- Section 4. The formation of committees may be established by the President or Music Directors for specific assignments from time to time throughout the year.
- Section 5. Officers and members present at a meeting shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Article III

Section 1. All matters pertaining to the activities, events, and projects of the Music Department and the Music Boosters must meet with approval from both Instrumental and Vocal Directors and must be in keeping with the policy of the district.

Article IV

- Section 1. Each band member shall make an annual payment to cover the cost of cleaning his/her uniform when his/her uniform is issued. Loss or repair of school-issued band items, such as uniforms, hangers, hat boxes, gloves, etc. is to be paid for at the end of the school year by the band member.
- Section 2. Monies or funds raised by, for, or in the name of the Johnson County Central Band or Chorus under the sponsorship of the Johnson County Central Music Boosters become the property of the Johnson County Central Music Boosters.
- Section 3. Such funds are to be used to support approved projects, activities, and programs of the Music Department.

- Section 4. Separate accounts shall be kept for each student who has raised monies for a specific project or activity and designated as such. Their accounts are separate from the general booster accounts.
- Section 5. All unused monies credited to a student shall be carried over in that student's name until the end of their senior year or until the end of their attendance at the school. At that time such monies shall revert to the general treasury of the boosters, except that if the student has a younger brother or sister in the music program, said monies shall be credited to him or her in an equitable manner.

Article V

- Section 1. The Johnson County Central Music Boosters shall award yearly scholarships to further a senior's education. The amount of the award shall be decided upon by a committee comprising the Music Directors and the Executive Committee (excluding those with a Senior applying for this award). Seniors must complete the application process to be eligible for this scholarship but are not required to continue their education in the area of music.
- Section 2. The Johnson County Central Music Boosters may provide summer scholarships to those students selected by the Music Directors to attend camps.
- Section 3. The Johnson County Central Music Boosters will pay for half of the expenses (not covered by the school) incurred by those selected to honor bands or choirs.
- Section 4. The Johnson County Central Music Boosters will pay for Directors' memberships in professional organizations and registrations to conventions.

Article VI

Section 1. These by-laws may be amended at any regular meeting of The Johnson County Central Music Boosters by a two-thirds vote of the members present; due notice of the proposed amendment having been given at a previous meeting.